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SAN BERNARDINO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
INLAND VALLEY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
Addendum # 1 

 
RFP-22-003: Janitorial Cleaning Services 

 
Written Questions from Contractors 

 
To all interested parties: 
 
This Addendum No. 1  to the subject RFP provides answers to participants’ questions, provides 
additional information, and modifies the original Scope of Work as part of the original Bid Documents. 
 
By this reference, all provisions of and attachments to this Addendum No. 1 are hereby incorporated into the 
subject RFP.  Participants shall account for all provisions pursuant to this Addendum No. 1 in submitting their 
proposals.  Each participant shall acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in their Proposal in the spaces 
provided therein. 

 

 
Can you please identify which buildings require 
employees to be vaccinated? 

ATC, Customs Border Protection Offices; Pending 
further guidance and mandates there may be 
subsequent requirements on Authority owned buildings

In regards to the Federal buildings needing 
service, what type of background clearance would 
they like to see employees have? 

In order to obtain a SBD Badge, a 10 year FBI 
background check (Criminal Record History Check) 
and Security Threat Assessment (STA) is required. 

Do any of the buildings requesting service during 
day hours need a bilingual employee on-site or 
can they be predominantly Spanish speaking? 

A supervisor or similar with bilingual skills is required 
to be on shift and all badge holders must be proficient 
in the English language. 

Can the awarded bidder install chemical 
dilution control machines to the custodial 
closet walls? 

Yes, Airport Authority will determine at the conclusion 
of the Service Agreement whether to require removal 
and return to original state or to absorb the equipment 
in to current inventory. 

Will it be stipulated in the agreement that 
time/price assessment be re-evaluated in the 
event that building usage goes up? 

Any changes to service agreement levels that exceed 
the Board approved amount will be brought before 
Board for approval. 

Is it expected for employees working during day 
hours to stay the entire time or will they be 
allowed to leave once tasks are completed if 
finished early? 

Airport Authority does not provide guidance on 
staff scheduling. 

QUESTIONS RESPONSES 
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Are you able to provide a copy of the winning 
RFP from three years ago in accordance to 
California Government Code Section 6250 et 
seq., commonly known as the Public Records 
Act? 

 
Any Public Records Requests must be submitted in 
writing to the SBIAA Clerk of the Board. 
http://www.sbiaa.org/public-information-request/ 
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Due to the nature in labor shortage, could there 
be additional time offered for staffing needs by 

extending the start date passed December 1st? I 
ask this question because you made mention that 
the decision would take place around November 

24th, which doesn’t allow much time to prepare 

for a December 1st start date, again due to labor 
shortage and the holidays. I did read that the 
contractor should have enough staff for this 
contract, but I figured there may be an exception 
due to the two concerns. 

 
The expectation is that services will be rendered 
beginning December 1. 

It is noted in the RFP that a price increase can 
only take place if both parties agree to it. Is 
mutual agreement also needed for federal/state 
wage labor increases or can those be passed 
along as they take place? 

 
Any federal/state labor increases affecting the 
service contract will be considered and brought to 
Board for approval, if applicable. 

Regularly scheduled services that fall on a 
nationally recognized holiday are still expected to 
be fulfilled during the actual holiday. I’d like to 
confirm that this includes Thanksgiving, 
Christmas, New Year’s Day, etc., correct? 

 
The airport operates daily throughout the year and 
requires continuous service. 

 
At building 794 control tower, it states main    
staircase cleaning sweep mopped & polished 
semiannually. Question: is this bottom stairs all the 
way to the top of the stairs on all floors? 

    
   Yes 

 
DFAS1. Windows clean inside/outside all office 
windows 2x times per month, which windows are 
you referring to? 
 

  
  The office windows that are occupied.  

 
Parts/supply mark-up % is referring to what? 
 

  
 Mark-up % on supplies and any materials furnished to 
complete the agreed upon services which may be 
audited by SBIAA at their sole discretion and must 
furnish supporting documentation to support invoiced 
amounts. 
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Can we please get maps of the inside of DFAS1 

  
Yes, they are attached herein to the responses packet 

 
To confirm, the contractor is to service the first 
 and second floor at DFAS1, correct?  

Yes. The occupied portions of DFAS 1, First and 
Second Floor. 

 


